
MINNETONKA BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Chair:     Council Liaison: 
Jeff Breazeale    Jennifer Halverson 
 
Members: 
Jeff Breazeale, Scott Gamble, Colleen Finnegan, Joe Steinfeld, Susan Swanson, Bridget Wortman 
   
Staff: 
Heidi Honey, City Administrator, Evan Monson, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

 

 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda  

Monday, October 27, 2025 ~ 7:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 29, 2025 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

5.1. Amendments To The Zoning Code Regarding Interim Uses, Accessory Dwelling Units 

And Notice Requirements 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
6.1. Tree Protection Ordinance Update from Work Group 
6.2. Project List – Priority Recommendation to City Council 
 

7. REPORTS  
7.1. Chair Report  
7.2. Commissioner reports 
7.3. Council Liaison 
7.4. Building Permit Report - Receive and File 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

  

1 of 19



Page 1 of 2              September 29, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

UNAPPROVED 
Minnetonka Beach Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 29, 2025 – 7 pm 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Chair Breazeale called the meeting to order at 7 pm. 
 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Commissioners Breazeale, Finnegan, Gamble, Steinfeld, Swanson and Wortman; Council Liaison 
Halverson 
Absent: none 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Heidi Honey, Zoning Administrator Evan Monson (Stantec)  
 

3. Approve Agenda  
Swanson motion, Wortman second to approve the June 23, 2025 meeting agenda. All ayes; motion passed.   
 

4. Approve Minutes 
4.1. Regular Planning Commission Meeting of June 23, 2025 

Honey will make an edit on page 3. Change sentence to “Honey explained that the CIP is the first part of the 
budget process. CIP is for items which are over $5,000, but are less than what would require bonding.”  
 
Swanson motion, Finnegan second to approve the June 23, 2025 meeting minutes with modifications as 
discussed. All ayes; motion passed.  
 

5. Public Hearings 
5.1. Zoning Code Amendment – Section 5.5.4. Additional Specific Standards for Certain Accessory Uses 
The proposed ordinance amendment was presented by Honey and Monson as a manner to correct a 
requirement for pools that cannot be applied to hot tubs (which are considered pools under the zoning 
code). This amendment would require a cover on hot tubs, etc in lieu of an automatic pool cover.  
 
Breazeale opened the public hearing at 7:10pm and closed it at 7:10pm with no comments. 
 
Finnegan suggested replacing “manual” with “safety” in the draft language.  
 

Finnegan motion, Swanson second to recommend City Council approve the proposed Ordinance No. 159, 2nd 
Series with the single amendment of replacing the word “manual” with “safety”. All ayes; motion passed. 
 

6. New Business 
6.1. Short Term Rentals – Make recommendation on necessity for City to regulate 
Breazeale stated that Council asked Planning to make a recommendation on whether they think the City 
should investigate regulating short term rentals or not. Breazeale suggested that they look to see if other 
communities regulate or not, perhaps get resident input, get a legal opinion on regulating or not. 
Breazeale asked if other cities regulated or not. An overwhelming majority of other cities regulate this as 
summarized on page 10 of 12 in the Planning Commission meeting packet, but Minnetonka Beach is very 
different than other cities. Steinfeld asked if they are trying to regulate an issue that does not exist. Honey 
stated that there are a few short-term rentals in the city and there have not been any complaints received. 
Planning Commission discussed defining “short term”. 

2 of 19



Page 2 of 2              September 29, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

Gamble motion, Swanson second that the Planning Commission recommend to Council that Planning 
Commission investigate whether or not to regulate short term rentals, given the fact that many 
communities in the area have policies that regulate short term rentals. All ayes; motion passed.  

 

7. Old Business 
7.1. Tree Protection Ordinance Update from Work Group 
Gamble discussed Phase 1 was technical changes that were approved by council. Phase 2 is simplification 
of the code. Phase 3 is to work with the Park Commission for broader support and messaging to residents. 
Phase 1 is complete. Phase 2 work will be reviewed at their November 10 work group meeting. Phase 3 
aligns with Park Commission ideas. There was a meeting with the work group and three members of the 
Park Commission to discuss Phase 3. Parks will take a leadership role with Planning support and present 
this to the Park Commission and they will jointly report back to City Council.  
 
Swanson discussed seeking a partnership with a local nursery to provide low cost trees to plant for 
residents, such as Otten Bros. Gamble will forward this suggestion to the Park Commission.  
 

8. Reports 
8.1. Chair Report – Breazeale welcomed Evan Monson as the new Zoning Administrator 
8.2. Commissioner Reports – Finnegan asked to revisit starting meetings at 6 pm. It was previously 

discussed that it is easier for people to attend public hearings at 7 pm. Wortman stated if it is later, 
that could also inhibit public input. Commissioners decided to leave the start time at 7 pm. Wortman 
discussed the difficulty of finding a new Planning Commissioner and suggested changing membership 
from 7 members to 6 members. There are a lot of people who volunteer in other capacities. Decided 
to continue to advertise the opening. November meeting is the 17th.  

8.3. Council Liaison – Halverson reported that Rep. Myers attended the Council meeting and discussed 
new laws and attempts at funding. Council approved the 2026 Fee Schedule. Most increases are 
contract based. Council also approved the 2026 Preliminary Budget and Capital Improvement 
Program. Water treatment plant is moving ahead. Wells are being drilled.  

8.4. Building Permit Report – received and filed. 
 

9. Adjournment 
 
Steinfeld motion, Swanson second to adjourn. All ayes; motion passed.  
 
Chair Breazeale adjourned the meeting at 7:47p.m. 
 
PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE –  
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by City Administrator Heidi Honey 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Heidi Honey, City Administrator 

3 of 19



 

Memo 

To: City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach 

Planning Commission 

 

From: Evan Monson, AICP 

 

Project/File: 193805540 Date: October 16, 2025 

 

Reference: Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance – Appendix A 

OVERVIEW  

City staff have identified several items in the current Zoning Ordinance (Appendix A of the City Code) for 

the City that need updating. These include interim uses and interim use permits (IUPs), notification 

requirements for land use requests, accessory uses, and accessory dwelling units (ADUs). These changes 

are meant to reduce issues with interpretation and use of the City’s zoning ordinance, and are further 

outlined in this report. 

PROPOSED CHANGES 

Interim Uses 

There are four ‘major’ categories land uses typically fall within a zoning code or ordinance – permitted, 

accessory, conditional, or interim. An interim use is described by the League of Minnesota Cities as: a use 

permitted with the approval of the city for a limited amount of time (contain a sunset provision), if conditions 

listed in the ordinance are met. The city currently does not define the term ‘interim use.’ In discussion with 

the city’s attorney, the following definition is proposed to be added into the ordinance: 

INTERIM USE. A temporary use of property until a particular date, until the occurrence of 

a particular event, or until zoning regulations no longer permit it. 

This is the exact definition as found in Minnesota State Statutes. Staff recommend adding a definition into 

the definitions section of the ordinance (Section 2.4) to ensure there is no question or difference in 

interpretation on what an interim use is moving forward. Other types of uses are already defined in Section 

2.4, so this addition would be consistent with the current construction of the ordinance. Legal counsel has 

also recommended some minor changes to Section 3.4.5, which is the section that provides specific review 

procedures and requirements for different requests. 

Notification Requirements 

Table 3.3.9 in the ordinance lists the requirements for notices for different requests. Staff have identified 

areas where the language is inconsistent or incorrect with how public notices work in practice. For example, 

a notice is currently required to be sent to “all property owners within 350” of a zoning ordinance 

amendment – this makes sense for a map amendment (commonly referred to as rezoning), as this applies 

to an actual specific parcel, but not for a change to the text of the ordinance itself. Minor changes to Section 

4 of 19

https://www.lmc.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/Zoning-Guide-for-Cities.pdf
file:///C:/Users/City%20Admin/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/2LSLYOEF/INTERIM%20USE.%20A%20temporary%20use%20of%20property%20until%20a%20particular%20date,%20until%20the%20occurrence%20of%20a%20particular%20event,%20or%20until%20zoning%20regulations%20no%20longer%20permit%20it


October 16, 2025 
City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach Planning Commission 
Page 2 of 3  

Reference: Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance – Appendix A 

3.3.9 are also recommended to ensure that city practices are consistent with those required under state 

law. 

Accessory Uses 

Table 5.4.2 lists whether uses that are considered accessory uses are allowed or not, and how they are 

allowed within each zoning district in the city. The ‘Accessory Dwelling Unit – detached’ use is currently not 

permitted in any zoning district, while ‘Accessory Dwelling Unit – attached’ is listed as permitted in the R-1 

zone. The standards or requirements for accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are listed in Section 5.5.4(A). 

Based on previous requests that have come before the Planning Commission and City Council, it would be 

better to list detached ADUs as an interim use in the R-1 zone. In conjunction with this change, staff 

recommend that the specific requirements or standards for ADUs should be revised to the following: 

(14) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, detached accessory dwelling units 

are allowed by interim use permit on any property on which the principal structure is 

registered with the National Historical Trust so long as the requirements of subsections (1), 

(4), (8), (9), (10), (11), (12) and (13) of this Section A are met. 

This would clarify when a detached ADU is allowed, and what standards currently listed would apply to a 

detached ADU. Given that the entire city is within the Shoreland Overlay zoning district as determined by 

the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR), staff reached out to DNR staff for comment. DNR 

staff stated they had no concerns with the proposed request. 

Zoning Ordinance Amendments 

Section 3.4.2 of the ordinance outlines the process for amendments. Section 3.4.2(E) lists the approval 

criteria. These are listed below in italics with staff comments following: 

E. Approval Criteria. Recommendations and decisions on zoning amendments shall include consideration 

of the following criteria: 

(1) Whether the proposed amendment corrects an error in the original text or map; or 

The proposed amendments address errors in the text of the ordinance, and ensure that city requirements, 

processes, and defined terms are consistent with state law and common planning practices. 

(2) Whether the proposed amendment addresses needs arising from a changing condition, trend, 

or fact affecting the subject property and surrounding area. 

The proposed amendments address changing planning trends, and ensure the city’s zoning requirements 

are consistent with state law and common planning practices. 

(3) Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with achieving the goals and objectives 

outlined in the comprehensive plan. 

The proposed amendments would appear to help the city meet multiple policies (7.5, 9.1, 9.2, and 9.3) of 

the city’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

5 of 19

https://www.ci.minnetonka-beach.mn.us/vertical/sites/%7B220E6946-C606-408C-96EE-ABCCE24AC6ED%7D/uploads/Minnetonka_Beach_Adopted_Comprehensive_Plan_and_Exhibits_08.18.2023.pdf


October 16, 2025 
City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach Planning Commission 
Page 3 of 3  

Reference: Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance – Appendix A 

(4) Whether the proposed amendment addresses concerns or problems recognized by the Zoning 

Commission or City Council. 

The proposed amendments address concerns brought forward by city staff to the Planning Commission and 

City Council. 

OPTIONS 

The Planning Commission has the following options: 

1. Recommend the City Council approve the amendments to Appendix A, with findings for approval. 

2. Recommend the City Council deny the amendments to Appendix A, with findings for denial. 

3. Table for further review/study. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommend the Planning Commission recommend the City Council approve of the amendments to 

Appendix A, with the following findings for approval: 

1. The proposed amendments address errors in the text of the ordinance, and ensure that city 

requirements, processes, and defined terms are consistent with state law and common 

planning practices. 

2. The proposed amendments address changing planning trends, and ensure the city’s zoning 

requirements are consistent with state law and common planning practices. 

3. The proposed amendments would help the city meet policies 7.5, 9.1, 9.2, and 9.3 of the city’s 

2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

4. The Planning Commission recognizes problems in the current zoning ordinance, and finds the 

proposed amendments address those problems. 

6 of 19



 

MN420-3-1052769.v1 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF MINNETONKA BEACH 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning Commission of the City of the Village 

of Minnetonka Beach, Hennepin County, MN will hold a public hearing on Monday, 

October 27, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. to consider amendments to the zoning code regarding 

interim uses, accessory dwelling units and notice requirements.  A draft of the ordinance 

is available on the City’s website at www.ci.minnetonka-beach.mn.us and at City Hall.  

Written comments are solicited and should be received at City Hall by Wednesday, October 

22, 2025.  Persons wishing to comment on the ordinance will also be heard at the public 

hearing. 

 

 

Jane Burgess 

City Clerk 

Published October 11, 2025 

 

7 of 19

http://www.ci.minnetonka-beach.mn.us/


DRAFT 

October 2, 2025 

MN420-3-1048046.v3 

CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF MINNETONKA BEACH, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. 161, 2nd Series 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

REGARDING INTERIM USES AND NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

The city council of the City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach ordains as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 2.4 Definitions of Appendix A of the city code is amended by adding the 

double-underlined language as follows in alphabetical order among the definitions: 

INTERIM USE. A temporary use of property until a particular date, until the occurrence of a 

particular event, or until zoning regulations no longer permit it. 

Section 2.  Section 3.3.9 C of Appendix A of the city code is amended by adding the double-

underlined language as follows: 

C. Responsibilities

(1) Published notice. When the provisions of state law or this ordinance require

that notice be published, the City Clerk shall be responsible for preparing the

content of the notice and publishing the notice in the City's official newspaper.

The content and form of the published notice shall be consistent with the

requirements of Section 3.3.9(A) and state law.

(2) Written (mailed) notice. When the provisions of state law or this ordinance

require that written or mailed notice be provided, the City Clerk shall be

responsible for preparing and mailing the written notice per the requirements

outlined in Table 3.3.9.

Section 3.  Table 3.3.9 in section 3.3.9 of Appendix A of the city code is amended by deleting the 

stricken language and adding the double-underlined language as follows: 

TABLE 3.3.9: WRITTEN NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

Application Type: Written Notice Provided to: 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

▪ For map amendments which involve five

acres of land or less, written notice shall

be provided to all property owners within

350 feet

▪ For text amendments or map

amendments which involve more than

five acres of land, notice need only be

published within the City’s official

newspaper

8 of 19



 

 

2 
MN420-3-1048046.v3 

 

Section 4.  Section 3.4.5 A of Appendix A of the city code is amended by adding the double-

underlined language as follows: 

 

3.4.5 Interim Use Permits 

 

A. Purpose and Scope. The purpose and intent of allowing interim uses is: 

(1) To allow a use for a brief period of time until a permanent location is obtained or 

while the permanent location is under construction.; or 

(2) To allow a use that is presently judged acceptable by the City Council but that, 

with anticipated development or redevelopment, will not be acceptable in the 

future or will be replaced in the future by a permitted or conditional use allowed 

within the respective district.; or 

(3) To allow a use which is reflective of anticipated long-range change to an area and 

which is in compliance with the comprehensive plan provided that said use 

maintains harmony and compatibility with surrounding uses and is in keeping 

with the architectural character and design standards of existing uses and 

development. 

Section 5. Section 3.4.5 F of Appendix A of the city code is amended by deleting the stricken 

language as follows: 

 

Zoning Map Amendment All property owners within 350 feet 

For map amendments which involve 

five acres of land or less, written notice 

shall be provided to all property 

owners within 350 feet 

 

For text amendments or map 

amendments which involve more than 

five acres of land, notice need only be 

published in the City’s official 

newspaper 

Variance All property owners within 350 feet 

Conditional Use Permit All property owners within 350 feet 

Interim Use Permit (new and renewal) All property owners within 350 feet 

Appeal of Administrative Decision All property owners within 350 feet 

CUP/IUP Revocation Permittee/Landowner Only 

Planned Unit Developments All property owners within 500 feet 

If the application type not listed above All property owners within 350 feet 

  

9 of 19



 

 

3 
MN420-3-1048046.v3 

F. Effect of an Interim Use Permit Approval. (1)  The issuance of an Interim Use Permit 

shall authorize only the improvements and use approved by the City Council as an 

interim use over the specified timeframe. 

(2) An Interim Use Permit, including any conditions, shall run with the land and shall 

not be affected by a change in ownership. 

 

Section 6. Table 5.4.2 in section 5.5.2 of Appendix A of the city code is amended by adding the 

double-underlined language as follows: 

 

TABLE 5.4.2: PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES 

P = Permitted  C = Conditional  Shaded = Not Permitted 

I = Interim 

 

Accessory Use or 

Structure 
Base Zoning Districts 

 

Additional  

Requirements [1] 

 
  

R1 

 

P1 

Accessory Dwelling Unit - 

within principal unit 
P  5.5.4(A)  

Accessory Dwelling Unit – 

detached 
I  5.5.4(A) 

Accessory Building – 

minor  
P  5.5.4(B) 

Accessory Building – 

major 
P  5.5.4(C) 

Air Conditioning Units P  5.5.4(D) 

Barbeque, Permanent P  5.5.4(E) 

Co-located Wireless 

Telecommunication 

Antennae 

C  12.0  

Driveways P  5.5.4(F) 

Fences or Walls P P 7.1  

Fire Pit P  5.5.4(G) 

Home Occupations P  5.5.4(H) 

Lake Accessory Uses P  5.5.4(I) 

Landscaping P P 5.5.4(J) 

Motor Vehicles P  5.5.4(K) 

Parking Spaces, Off-street P  7.5 

Patio P  Na 

Outdoor Storage P  5.5.4(L) 

Park Facility Buildings & 
Structures (public) P  5.5.4(M) 

10 of 19



 

 

4 
MN420-3-1048046.v3 

Private Amateur Radio 

Antenna 
C  5.5.4(N) 

Private Receiving 
Antennae and Antenna 
Support Structures 

C  5.5.4(O) 

Recreational Equipment P  5.5.4(P) 

Shelters (Storm or Fallout) P  5.5.4(Q) 

Sign(s) P P 7.3  

Solar Energy System P  5.5.4(R) 

Stairways P P 6.2.5 

Swimming Pool (above 

ground) 
P  5.5.4(S) 

Swimming Pool (below 

ground) 
P  

5.5.4(T) 

Terrace P  5.5.4(U) 

Walkways P P Na 

Wind Energy Conversion 

System, Small (SWECS) 
C  5.5.4(V) 

Wireless 

Telecommunications 

Support Structures 

C  12.0 

[1]: Consult Table 6.1.8(B) for additional regulations on setbacks 

 

 

Section 7. Section 5.5.4 A of Appendix A of the city code is amended by adding the double-

underlined language as follows: 

 

A. Accessory Dwelling Unit.  All accessory dwelling units shall meet the following 

performance standards in addition to any other more restrictive standards of the City 

Code 

(1) All accessory dwelling units may only be occupied by the owner-occupant, family 

of the owner-occupant, domestic help or caregivers. 

(2) Accessory dwelling units must be located within the principal unit. 

(3) The principal unit must meet all setback, height and other residential development 

requirements.  

(4) One accessory dwelling unit is allowed on a lot with the principal use. 

(5) No detached accessory dwelling units are permitted. 

(6) Additions to a principal unit to accommodate accessory dwelling units shall be 

designed and maintained so as to be consistent with the architectural design, style, 

appearance, and character of the principal unit. Such design and maintenance 

11 of 19



 

 

5 
MN420-3-1048046.v3 

shall be consistent with the principal unit's facade, roof pitch, siding and roof 

material, windows, entryways, and doors. 

(7) If the entrance to the accessory dwelling unit is not the same as the entrance to 

the principal unit, the following conditions must be met: 

(a) A riparian lot must be a minimum area of 26,000 square feet and 135 feet 

wide, 

(b) A nonriparian lot must be a minimum of 17,500 square feet and 135 feet wide, 

(c) Any exterior entrance to the accessory dwelling unit, including any stairways, 

shall be located in such a manner as to not be visible at any time from a street 

or Lake Minnetonka, 

(d) Under all circumstances, accessory dwelling units shall have interior access 

between the accessory dwelling unit and the principal unit, and 

(e) The orientation of the accessory dwelling unit shall, to the maximum extent 

practicable, maintain the privacy of the residents in the adjoining dwelling 

units not located on the same lot as the accessory dwelling unit by such 

elements as landscaping, fencing, window and door placement or the design 

of the accessory dwelling unit. 

(8) At least one off-street parking space shall be provided for an accessory dwelling 

unit. 

(9) Additional driveways from a street may not be constructed for access to the 

accessory dwelling unit or for access to the accessory dwelling unit's parking 

space. 

(10) All utilities to the accessory dwelling unit including but not limited to water, 

sewer, electric, cable, and telephone will be provided underground from their 

source to the accessory dwelling unit. Water and sanitary sewer lines to the 

accessory dwelling unit are required to be connected on the lot of the principal 

unit and may not be connected directly to the public water or public sanitary sewer 

system located in the street. All water and electrical service must be metered 

through the meter located in the principal unit. 

(11) Deed restrictions. Before issuing a building permit for a new accessory dwelling 

unit, the owner occupant shall record with Hennepin County, against the title of 

the subject property, a deed restriction running in favor of the City limiting the 

occupancy of the accessory dwelling unit as provided for in this ordinance. 

(12) Right of Entry.  Before a Building Permit is issued for an accessory dwelling unit, 

the Owner shall for its self, heirs and assigns enter into an agreement with the 

City to allow the City reasonable rights of entry for the purpose of performing 

inspections of the accessory dwelling unit. 

12 of 19



 

 

6 
MN420-3-1048046.v3 

(13) The Deed Restriction and Right of Entry Agreement shall be recorded with 

Hennepin County with the title of the property. 

(14) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, detached accessory dwelling 

units are allowed by interim use permit on any property on which the principal 

structure is registered with the National Historical Trust so long as the 

requirements of subsections (1), (4), (8), (9), (10), (11), (12) and (13) of this 

section A are met. 

 

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately following adoption and publication 

as required by law. 

 

Adopted by the city council of the City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach this ______ day of 

_____________, 2025. 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Joe Pagano, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Jane Burgess, City Clerk 

13 of 19



Page 1 of 1                

 

Minnetonka Beach Tree Preservation Ordinance Work Group 
 
 
Members: 
Jeff Breazeale, Scott Gamble, Bridget Wortman 
   
Staff: 
Heidi Honey, City Administrator 

 
Work Group Meeting Notes 

Tuesday, October 21, 2025 ~ 4:30 PM 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 pm. Attendees: Breazeale, Wortman, Honey and Gamble 

 

Breazeale provided an overview of proposed changes to simplify code language. The following changes were 

proposed.  

• Move historical background to beginning of zoning code as section 1.3 Purpose 

• Move definitions to 2.4 Definitions 

• Change 2.4 Definitions – Construction Activity to an updated definition of construction activity and 

remove from tree section 

• Nuisance trees for tree removal – refer to city code section 508 and compare city code and this language to 

see if there is any nuisance language that should be added to city code section 508 

• Check people authorized to give approval on the chart and make sure nothing was missed 

• Look at DNR model ordinance regarding tree removal in 75 ft of lake and compare 

• Try to eliminate the board by tightening the code so there are less opportunities for subjective decisions 

• Update city code 3.2.1. by adding City Administrator as decision maker for tree removal requests 

• Remove tree enforcement – it is in city code. Review the city code section and see if anything should be 

added to the city code section regarding trees.  

 

 

Breazeale will need to make the actual language changes and movement of sections of code. He will provide an 

update to the Planning Commission on October 27 and provide draft language by December.  

 

The meeting ended at 5:45pm. 

 

Residents in attendance: none    Meeting notes by City Administrator Heidi Honey 

14 of 19



 

CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF MINNETONKA BEACH  MEMORANDUM  

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: HEIDI HONEY, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 

DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2025 

  

  

Background: At the last Planning Commission meeting, the commission was asked to give a recommendation to 
Council on if they think the Planning Commission should be directed to research and make a recommendation 
on regulating short term rentals. The commission had the following discussion and motion,  
 
“Short Term Rentals – Make recommendation on necessity for City to regulate  
 
Breazeale stated that Council asked Planning to make a recommendation on whether they think the City should 
investigate regulating short term rentals or not. Breazeale suggested that they look to see if other communities 
regulate or not, perhaps get resident input, get a legal opinion on regulating or not. Breazeale asked if other 
cities regulated or not. An overwhelming majority of other cities regulate this as summarized on page 10 of 12 in 
the Planning Commission meeting packet, but Minnetonka Beach is very different than other cities. Steinfeld 
asked if they are trying to regulate an issue that does not exist. Honey stated that there are a few short-term 
rentals in the city and there have not been any complaints received. Planning Commission discussed defining 
“short term”.  
 
Gamble motion, Swanson second that the Planning Commission recommend to Council that Planning 
Commission investigate whether or not to regulate short term rentals, given the fact that many communities 
in the area have policies that regulate short term rentals. All ayes; motion passed.” 
 
Request: This recommendation will be part of the discussion at the November 10th Council meeting. I wanted to 
include the Planning Commission current project list in that discussion. Council understands the commissioners 
are volunteers and are very giving of their time and talent. They want to be aware of the capacity of the 
commission before adding additional work. The Planning Commission is still updating the Tree Protection 
Ordinance. The Planning Commission was asked to update the Home Occupation section of zoning code to 
address cannabis business by the city attorney, as soon as the tree ordinance updates are complete. When that 
was first discussed, the Planning Commission determined the home business section was out of date and 
needed amending. The Planning Commission has now recommended that it address if the city should regulate 
short term rentals. There has also been past discussion about some small and some larger issues which include: 
Grading to raise the height of the yard (I am not sure if this is on Council’s radar or not, it was on an old list) 
Regulating fences 
Landscaping 
Comprehensive Plan – need to start working on it next year 
 
I would like Planning to consider these potential items and give me feedback or a priority list and timeline in 
dealing with them over the next year or two to enable Council to give direction as to next steps. We could also 
consider having council approve a process as was suggested by Chair Breazeale to review other communities, 
get resident input and a legal opinion of regulating or not. The commission should weigh this against 
time/energy in collecting all this data.  
 
I included a memo from Zoning Administrator Monson in this packet for the Planning Commission to have a 
general overview of how regulating short term rentals may work for future discussions.  

 
 

15 of 19



 

Memo 

To: City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach 

Planning Commission 

 

From: Evan Monson, AICP 

 

Project/File: 193805540 Date: October 20, 2025 

 

Reference: Short-Term Rentals - STRs 

INTRODUCTION 

Staff have compiled information for review to help the Planning Commission determine if and how 

regulation of Short-Term Rentals (STRs) could work in the city. As noted in the meeting packet for the 

September Planning Commission meeting, there is no single standard for regulating these in cities. 

OVERVIEW 

Definitions and State Requirements 

A Short-Term Rental is commonly defined as a dwelling unit, or a bedroom within a dwelling unit, which is 

rented out for a period of less than 30 consecutive days. These have become popular over the last 10-15 

years through websites such as Airbnb and VRBO. Communities that have regulations on the books may 

use the term ‘vacation rental,’ tourist house,’ or ‘short term home rental.’ Staff will use the term 'short-term 

rental' or ‘STR’ throughout this report. 

The State Department of Health has jurisdiction to license and inspect hotels, motels, and lodging 

establishments, unless said responsibility has been delegated to a city or county (Hennepin County has 

been delegated this responsibility from the state). In this context, a hotel or motel is defined by the State as 

buildings, structures, enclosures, or any part thereof used as, maintained as, advertised as, or held out to 

be places where sleeping accommodations are furnished to the public for a stay of less than a week. A 

lodging establishment is defined as buildings, structures, enclosures, or any part thereof used as, 

maintained as, advertised as, or held out as places where sleeping accommodations are furnished to the 

public as regular roomers for stays of a week or more and having five or more beds. A STR could meet one 

or both of these definitions, which would therefore require the property owner to get any required licenses 

from Hennepin County. In addition, a STR would be subject to sales taxes. 

Common Ordinance requirements 

There are two ways a community may permit STRs. This can be done within a zoning ordinance; some 

communities include STRs as a use, and will then limit this use to certain zones, and/or require a 

conditional or interim use permit for said use. Some communities regulate STRs through a licensing 

program, which is outlined in a different ordinance or code section than zoning. Communities that require 

licensing for businesses or rental housing may use a similar program and licensing process for STRs. 

16 of 19



October 20, 2025 
City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach Planning Commission 
Page 2 of 2  

Reference: Short-Term Rentals 

Some communities require a dwelling used as a STR to be owner-occupied as a way to keep renting as an 

incidental use or activity and prohibit someone from using a residence strictly for use as an STR. There are 

communities that have required the homeowner to be present during the stay of guests. Presumably, this is 

a way to help prevent guests from being bothersome during their stay, though regardless of whether an 

owner is present or not the guests would still need to follow any local rules regarding noise, nuisances, etc. 

Communities can also set restrictions or limitations based on the number of days being rented. For 

example, some communities limit the total number of days a residence can be used as a STR in a year. 

For reference, the links below are to current ordinances of nearby and other communities: 

• Orono (Section 4.04.470) 

o Dwellings shall be homesteaded and owner-occupied. License required. 

• Spring Park (Section 42-280) 

o Requires an interim use permit (IUP). 

• Stillwater (Article XIV) 

o Allowed in certain zones, with license. City-wide cap on total licenses. 

• Tonka Bay (Section 425) 

o Dwellings shall be homesteaded. License required. 

• Wayzata (Ordinance #852) 

o Prohibits STRs. 

o Property owners recently filed suit against the ordinance. 

Lastly, communities that prohibit STRs adopt an ordinance with findings as to why the community is 

prohibiting them. This can range from nuisances and disruptions, transient use of a residence being more 

commercial than residential, and concerns with increased traffic and off-street parking. 

If the city chooses to regulate STRs (whether to allow them and set restrictions, or to prohibit them), the city 

will need to consider how any regulation or requirement is monitored and enforced. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This is informational only. 

17 of 19

https://library.municode.com/MN/Orono/CODES/Code_of_Ordinances?nodeId=COOR_TITIVBULILIRE_CH4.04BU_ARTIVRELI_S4.04.470SHRMREPR
https://library.municode.com/mn/spring_park/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH42ZOSHOR_ARTVIIIESZOCL_DIV2SITMIREDI_S42-280INUS
https://www.stillwatermn.gov/city-government/departments/community-development/short-term-home-rental
https://www.cityoftonkabay.net/vertical/sites/%7B4A0B5943-C4EE-4132-80D2-7FD9E610BCBF%7D/uploads/SECTION_425_SHORT_TERM_RENTAL_ORDINANCE(1).pdf
https://wayzatamn.portal.civicclerk.com/event/1563/files/agenda/5259
https://www.msn.com/en-us/society-culture-and-history/social-issues/wayzata-faces-lawsuit-over-airbnb-ban/ar-AA1OPYkB


HOMES FOR SALE 2025

Sold Price Address Date Closed Former Owner New Home Owner

$8,800,000 2306 Huntington PT Rd W 2/14/2025 Ericson Harriet Investments, LLC

$4,801,000 2482 Lafayette Rd 5/29/2025 Rosenblum Swanson
$745,000 3147 Lafayette Ridge Rd 7/11/2025 B. Johnson Masa Properties

$1,400,000 3115 Old County Rd 7/18/2025 Paulson Thomas

$3,195,000 2639 Woodbridge RD 7/18/2025 Stretmater Mayer/Kaplan

$2,600,000 3150 Northview 7/25/2025 Anderson Burke

$4,827,500 3004 Northview 8/11/2025 Smyrnios Nordlie

$3,800,000 2625 Woodbridge Rd 8/29/2025 Radford Routhier

$1,350,000 3022 Shoreline Dr. 8/25/2025 Bedell Lee

$1,188,018 2022 Lake Rd 9/30/2025 Gadaskin Rifkin & Flaherty

$2,500,000 2645 Arcola Ln 10/1/2025 Davis Boisclair

$1,145,000 3144 Northview Rd 10/3/2025 O'Neill Cronin

HOMES FOR SALE 2025

       LISTING PRICE ADDRESS STATUS LISTING STATUS OWNER SELLER

$1,200,000 2669 Woodbridge Rd Pending Land 0nly  Birkholz

$6,900,000 2462 Lafayette Rd For Sale was $7,300,000 Berg

$3,200,000 3040 Northview For Sale Was $3,500,000 Nordlie

$3,249,000 3017 Brooks Ln For Sale was $3,300,000 McNally

$889,000 3114 Brooks Ln For Sale Johnson

$2,850,000 3147 Lafayette Ridge Rd For Sale new build Masa Properties

$1,595,000 2314 Old Beach Rd For Sale

was $2,195,000                                                     

was $1,995,000                       

was $1,795,000              was Baumer

18 of 19



                                                   2025 Building Permits                                                                                           *** STATE SURCHARGE
Issued   Bldg.   State   Plan  Other   Total

No. Date         Address Homeowner   Contractor    Type of Work Proj. Cost Permit    Fee Review Perf Agrmt   Permit
1 1/3/2025 2631 Arcola Ln Meskan Transformed Tree remodel $180,000.00 $1,658.01 $90.00 1077.71 $300.00 $3,125.72
2 2/5/2025 2201 Huntington Pt Rd E Colombo Lecy Acc structure $102,000.00 $1,207.21 $55.00 784.69 $300.00 $2,346.90
3 3/26/2025 3120 Brooks Ln Hasselbring Performance Pool $20,000.00 $369.31 $10.00 $240.05 $619.36
4 1/31/2025 2868 Northview Rd Landschute Landschute windows $35,000.00 $566.01 $17.50 $367.91 $951.42
5 3/1/2025 2719 Woodbridge Rd Perry Align Kitchen & windows $270,000.00 $2,237.61 $135.00 $1,454.45 $300.00 $4,127.06
6 2/24/2025 2446 Lafayette Rd Pillar MN Solar Solar panels $16,560.00 $321.01 $8.50 $208.66 $1.00 $539.17
7 4/3/2025 2868 Northview Rd Landschute Landschute remodel $30,000.00 $507.91 $15.00 $330.14 $853.05
8 4/11/2025 2800 Northview Rd Lafayette Club Knutson re-roof $4,400,000.00 $20,728.81 $1,440.00 $13,473.73 $300.00 $35,942.54
9 3/19/2025 2309 Huntington Pt Rd E Bauman Kewchle shower $4,000.00 $111.71 $2.00 $72.61 $186.32

10 5/22/2025 2801 Westwood Rd St. Martins Albrecht sign $31,215.00 $531.15 $16.00 $345.25 $892.40
11 5/15/2025 2417 Woodbridge Rd Forbes Weld & Son Plumbing bath $8,000.00 $176.11 $4.00 $114.47 $294.58
12 6/12/2025 3138 Northview Rd Emmel Woodcraft Design Build deck boards $11,500.00 $240.51 $6.00 $156.33 $402.84
13 7/18/2025 2800 Northview Rd Lafayette Club Knutson Stucco/Windows $1,909,000.00 $10,648.81 $900.00 $6,921.73 $18,470.54
14 8/1/2025 2526 Arcola Ln Andrews Waterstone Construction Replace deck 20,000.00 $369.31 $10.00 $240.05 $619.36
15 8/12/2025 3004 Northview Rd Nodlie Incline Exterior Reroof $20,600.00 $385.41 $10.50 $395.91
16 8/14/2025 1905 Beach Ln Crow American Waterworks Waterproofing $9,991.00 $208.31 $5.00 $135.40 $348.71
17 8/27/2025 3131 Lafayette Ridge Rd Drake Joerin Construction Garage $22,000.00 $349.25 $11.00 $227.01 $587.26
18 9/9/2025 2505 Lafayette Rd Swenson Kreamer & Sons Kitchen & Door $325,000.00 $2,624.01 $165.00 $1,705.61 $300.00 $4,794.62
19 9/5/2025 2515 Lafayette RD Maurel A-Square Wall $5,000.00 $0.00
20 9/4/2025 3010 Northview Rd Longval Vick windows $16,000.00 $304.91 $8.00 $312.91
21 9/18/2025 1928 Beach Ln Knutson Incline Exterior Reroof $2,400.00 $95.61 $1.50 $97.11
22 9/26/2025 3130 Brooks Ln Hunt Creative Con. 2 windows $2,000.00 $79.51 $1.00 $51.68 $132.19
23 9/26/2025 3147 Lafayette Ridge Rd Masa Cityline Demo $200.00 $1.00 $200.00 $401.00
24 10/20/2025 3147 Lafayette Ridge Rd Masa Cityline New Home $950,000.00 $6,175.81 $475.00 $4,014.28 $300.00 $10,965.09
25 9/24/2025 2520 Arcola Ln Bjoiklund Apex Ext Reroof $40,000.00 $624.11 $20.00 $644.11
26 10/20/2025 2661 Arcola Ln Mitchell MDS Remodeling Bath, Bedroom $32,000.00 $531.15 $16.00 $345.25 $892.40
27 10/10/2025 3004 Northview Rd Nordlie Haven Res.  Master Bath $92,700.00 $1,086.46 $46.50 $706.20 $1,839.16
28 10/7/2025 3028 Westwood Rd Bills Eclipse Roofing Reroof $54,113.55 $780.56 $27.50 $808.06
29 10/17/2025 2645 Arcola Ln Boisclair Steiner & Koppelman Inter Remodel $760,000.00 $5,138.41 $380.00 $3,339.97 $300.00 $9,158.38
30 10/15/2025 1916 Cottage Ln Pickering MDS Remodeling Reroof $21,000.00 $385.41 $10.50 $395.91
31 $0.00
32 $0.00
33 $0.00
34 $0.00
35 $0.00
36 $0.00
37 $0.00
38 $0.00
39 $0.00
40 $0.00
41 $0.00
42 $0.00

$9,390,079.55 $58,642.40 $3,887.50 $36,313.18 $2,101.00 $200.00 $101,144.08

19 of 19


	October 27 2025 Planning Commission Agenda
	4. 09 September 29 2025 Planning Minutes
	5.1. PC Memo 2025.10.16_Mtka Beach - Misc Code Amendments PC Memo
	5.1.2. Notice of Public Hearing Amending Zoning Ord Regarding Interim Use, ADU, and Notification Requirements REV. FINAL
	5.1.3. Interim uses adu and notification requirements Final DOCSOPEN-#1048046-v3
	6.2. 10.21.2025 TPO work group meeting notes
	6.2. Administrators memo re Project List
	6.2.1. 2025.10.21_Mtka Beach - STRs PC Memo
	7.4. 2025 Home Sales
	7.4. BUILDING Permit Logs 2025
	Bld Permit 2025




